TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

10 FRONT STREET ¢ EXETER, NH  03833-3792 * (603) 778-0591 *FAX 772-4709

www.exeternh.qov

LEGAL NOTCE
EXETER HERITAGE COMMISSION
MEETING NOTICE / AGENDA

The Exeter Heritage Commission will meet on Wednesday, January 24, 2024 at 7:00 PM in
the Nowak Room at the Exeter Town Office Building, 10 Front Street, Exeter to consider the
following:

NEW BUSINESS:

e Review of minutes from the November 15, 2023 meeting

e Public Hearing: Amend the Commission’s Rules of Procedure — Section 1. 2.
Amendment., by striking the language “in accordance with the same requirements
of Historic District Commissions outlined in RSA 675:6” from this section.

e Continued review of the Commission’s Rules of Procedure (ROP)

e Continued discussion on possible change to monthly meeting date/time

e Demolition Review Committee update

e Updates from representatives of the Select Board, Planning Board, and Historic
District Commission

OLD BUSINESS:

e Updates and/or discussions on various projects and initiatives

EXETER HERITAGE COMMISSION
John Merkle, Vice Chairman

Posted 01/08/24: Exeter Town Office and Town of Exeter website


http://www.exeternh.gov/

Heritage Commission
November 15, 2023

Draft Minutes

Members Present: Julie Gilman, Select Board Rep., John Merkle, Vice Chair,
Francoise Elise, Pam Gjettum, Clerk

Also present was Dave Sharples, Town Planner

Call Meeting to Order: John Merkle, Vice Chair, called meeting to order at 7:00
pm in the Novak Room of the Exeter Town Office Building.

New Business: First on the agenda is the approval of the October 18, 2023
minutes. After review and a correction, Julie made a motion to approve. Pam
seconded. All were in favor and minutes approved.

Next is the review of the Commission’s Rules of Procedures (ROP). Julie said, we
have been talking about what time we meet and we need to formally vote to
make the change.

Dave Sharples spoke and said there are a couple of things with the rules and
procedures. When it talks about meetings, it says it will be the second
Wednesday of every month. In order to change that you would want to amend
your rules and procedures. However, under Roman numeral 1-2, Amendment, it
calls out amendments to these rules and procedures shall be adopted at a regular
meeting of the commission in accordance with the same requirements of the HDC
outlined in RSA 75-6. But RSA 75-6 is not relevant to rules and procedures. They
are relevant to regulations. Right now it says that you need to have a public
hearing. You don’t usually need one. The Planning Board and any other rules and
procedures don’t have that but | would suggest posting a public hearing. Also
then change the amendment language just to be consistent with the Planning
Board rules and procedures which state two things. One is an amendment will be
adopted at a regular meeting of the commission and placed on file with the Town
Clerk for public inspection. | would strike the existing amendment language and
add that.



Then under meetings, if you are going to schedule a new meeting time you can
put that in there but | would use the word generally instead of shall.

Julie said under Officers (page 4), it lists the Vice Chairperson and Secretary and
we have never named anybody Secretary. It has always been Clerk. We also still
need a Treasurer because we have our own commission account and | do not
think we named a Treasurer this year.

Pam said if we change our meeting time, we might lose our Secretary. What is
your schedule Liz? Liz said if it is Wednesday, it should be ok.

Julie then said that Wednesdays and Thursdays are difficult for her because she
works at the State House. Monday, Tuesday or Friday would work and the
morning would be better.

Francoise said mornings or afternoons are ok for me. Has the commission
members voiced what is best for them? Julie said that various commissioners
have said morning. Pam said, | do not drive after dark so | would much prefer a
morning meeting time and John Gruger feels the same way and also Bill Campbell.

Francoise asked if she could bring something up that might affect the time we
meet. | understand that in the State of NH they now have a new requirement, a
law that on the School Board they do recruit a student to sit on the School Board.
| would be very open and encouraging to have a student sit on this commission. A
student from the high school. | would like to look at that. A student on this
commission could learn so much about potential careers. Julie said it is a good
idea and the Energy Committee has student representation and those meeting
are held at 3:30pm.

John asked if the student would have to be appointed by the Selectmen. Dave
said yes. It would be just as if you were a regular member and they would have to
be a resident.

Pam said the Historical Society has two student members on their board. So
there are two that are already into history. Maybe every few months, we could
borrow one of them. Pam then said that high school kids today are out straight. |
am the rep for the Key Club. They come in at 2:30pm, get through their business
and get going. Most of them play sports.



Dave said he heard no Wednesdays or Thursdays for the meeting so it will be
Monday, Tuesday or Friday. Dave asked would it be morning or afternoon. Julie
said we have heard from people that early morning would be good.

John asked, special meetings brought on by demolition will it fall under the same
timeframe? Dave said no. When we amend the rules, the chairperson will be
able to cancel/call meetings.

Dave said | can put it out there. Julie said she would like to put it out there. One
of the other things we want to talk about is whether or not we name a seven
member board or not. We could be a five member board with a student
representative.

Dave said he will put out Monday and Tuesday 8am to 9 am and 9am to 10am and
3:30pm to 4:30pm to see what people think.

Julie said there are a few other things on rules and procedures. We do refer to a
Secretary as one of our officers. We should probably just change that to Clerk.
Dave said there are a couple of options. You can renew it or just strike it. Julie
said we do need to include the processing of the minutes and they have to be
done within five business days.

Julie talked about going from seven members to five and possibly merging the HC
and the HDC.

John said so we are going to be looking into Mondays and Tuesdays and strike out
the Secretary and Dave will work with us to cover the meeting minutes for the
Clerk. John then asked if the Selectmen were already looking into the merger and
Julie said yes.

John then asked if anyone had any more comments on the rules and procedures.

Dave asked, can | make a suggestion. Like we talked about before with rules and
procedures they take you to a public hearing notice and all of that and generally
when you do that you say specifically what you are going to amend. | would
suggest at the next meeting hold a public hearing on amending your rule and
procedure specifically Section Roman numeral 1.2 Amendment by striking in
accordance with the same requirements of Historic District outlined in RSA 676-6.
Strike this and then it reads without that in there consistent with other rules and



procedures. Dave said, | will take care of the posting and post the public hearing
and you will have the ability to make that amendment and once you do that, you
can change other things at a regular meeting without any notice on your rules and
procedures.

John asked if it needs to be posted and voted on at the next meeting and Julie and
Dave said yes.

John then asked the members if there were any more comments on rules and
procedures. There were none.

Next is discussion on possible change to monthly meeting date/time. John said,
we have taken care of this already.

Demolition Review Committee update. Pam said, we all got the information for
this but | still cannot find where this place is. John said, | could not find it on the
map either. Julie said, we should know exactly where it is before we set up a
meeting. John said, as far as | know, there is nothing else on the demolition piece
to discuss.

John then asked if there were any updates from the Select Board. Julie said the
HDC has not met in a couple of months and the Select Board is undertaking to
review all the boards, committees and commissions.

Dave said he has a question. | don’t know how old the building is, but there is an
application going before the Planning Board tomorrow for Little River Road. Julie
said that was the church and it has already been taken care of.

The Demolition Review Committee will meet next week Monday or Tuesday for
45 South Street. Dave asked who the members of this committee were. Julie said
it depends on who is available and it is three members at a time.

Old Business: Updates and/or discussions on various projects and initiatives.
Francoise said there were a couple of workshops put on by the Preservation
Alliance Heritage Commission 101 that was posted to the web page for the
Heritage Commission. It was very good and very basic. Any new member would
benefit by it. It is also posted to our web page now with the actual slides. | did
watch the second one that the Preservation put on, Growing Movement Outreach
Engagement Strategy for Heritage Commissions and Historic District Commissions.



It was very good. The leader of that was a consultant, Chris Scalley. He was very
good, very relevant, very engaging from the beginning until the end. He also had
a lot of good suggestions. One of them being having events where we introduce
topics such as education on windows and colors. He talked about working with
the realtors in the area. When the slides for that presentation come up, | will post
it to our web page. | just thought they were very, very interesting.

Francoise then said at our last meeting we talked about a Residential Facade
Improvement Program where we would be looking at a program that residents
could apply for. It would be funds to improve their home. We also talked about
forming a sub-committee that would look into that. Is there still any interest in
this?

Pam said, | think | am the sub-committee and | never got in touch with the guy
who owned the old grocery store on Main Street. | was thinking Peter Smith with
this house would work and he is willing to do it. He taught history for many years
and he pretty much ran the Historical Society for a long time and he has a
beautiful old house. It would make a nice walk through.

Francoise asked if the commission be open to Julie and | meeting on just looking
into a Residential Facade Improvement Program to see if it would be a fit for
Exeter. All were in agreement for them to look into it.

With no further business, John made a motion to adjourn. Julie said so moved.
Pam seconded and meeting was adjourned at 8:00pm.

Respectfully submitted,
Elizabeth Herrick

Recording Secretary



Town of Exeter Heritage Commission Rules of Procedure

Rules under which the commission operates,

Adopted 13 March, 2007

L. GENERAL

1.

Page 1 of 8

Authority. The Exeter Heritage Commission (hereinafter the Commission) was established by the
voters of the Town of Exeter at Town Meeting of March 14, 2006. Pursuant to RSA § 676:1, the
Commission has adopted these Rules of Procedure to prescribe the method of conducting its
business pursuant to RSA § 673, RSA § 674, RSA § 676, and RSA § 91-A.

Amendment. Amendments to these Rules of Procedure shall be adopted at a regular meeting of
the Commission in accordance with the same requirements of Historic District Commissions
outlined in RSA § 675:6 and shall be placed on file with the Town Clerk for public inspection.
Interpretation. These Rules of Procedure are based upon the most current statutes governing land
use boards as of its writing (updated with legislation through Chapter 297 of the 2001 Session of
the General Court). Whenever the requirements of these Rules of Procedure are at variance with
those of any other lawfully adopted rules, regulations, ordinances, or statutes, the requirements
that are most restrictive or that impose the higher standard shall govern.

Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or other part of these Rules of
Procedure is for any reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of these Rules of Procedure.

Definitions. Unless specifically defined below, words or phrases in these Rules of Procedure shall
be interpreted to give them the same meaning as they have in the Exeter Zoning Ordinance and/or
in common usage so as to give these rules their most reasonable application.

a. Abutter. Any person whose property is located in the Town of Exeter and adjoins or is
directly across the street or stream or railroad right-of-way from the land under
consideration by the Commission. For purposes of receiving testimony only and not for
purposes of notification, the term abutter shall include any person who is able to
demonstrate that his property will be directly affected by the proposal under consideration.

b. Alternate Member. A member of the Commission who, at the direction of the chairperson,
serves in the absence or disqualification of a regular member of the Commission.

c. Applicant(s). The owner(s) of the property.

d. Building Permit (or Permit). A certificate issued by the Code Enforcement Officer
permitting the building, alteration, installation, repair, or change of buildings, land, or uses
as regulated by the Zoning Ordinance.

e. Certificate of Approval (or Certificate). A certificate issued by the Historic District
Commission indicating its approval of an application to alter, repair, construct, add onto,
move, demolish, or change the use of a structure or a site within a Historic District.

f. Certified Local Government. A city or town that has met specific standards enabling

participation in certain National Historic Preservation Act programs.

4/25/2007



Town of Exeter Heritage Commission Rules of Procedure

Commission. Commission shall mean the Heritage Commission of the Town of Exeter,
New Hampshire.

Conservation Restriction. A right to prohibit or require, a limitation upon, or an obligation to
perform, acts on or with respect to, or uses of, a land or water area, whether stated in the
form of a restriction, easement, covenant or condition, in any deed, will, or other
instrument executed by or on behalf of the owner of the area or in any order of taking,
which right, limitation, or obligation is appropriate to retaining or maintaining such land or
water area, including improvements thereon, predominantly in its natural, scenic, or open
condition, or in agricultural, farming, open space or forest use, or in any other use or
condition consistent with the protection of environmental quality.

Ex Officio Member. Any member of the Commission who holds office by virtue of an
official position and who shall exercise all the powers of a regular member of the
Commission.

Historic Properly (or Historic Resource). Any prehistoric or historic site, place, building,
structure, or object that is deemed by the Commission to have historic, cultural, social,
economic, political, or architectural significance.

Historic District. An area designated by ordinance of the Town of Exeter and which
contains within definable geographic boundaries a significant concentration, linkage, or
continuity of sites, buildings, structures, or objects united by past events or aesthetically
by plan or physical development.

Preservation. The act or process of applying measures necessary to sustain the existing
form, integrity, and materials of an historic structure, place, or feature.

Preservation Restriction. A right to prohibit or require, a limitation upon, or an obligation to
perform, acts on or with respect to, or uses of, a structure or site historically significant for
its architecture, archaeology or associations, whether stated in the form of a restriction,
easement, covenant or condition, in any deed, will or other instrument executed by or on
behalf of the owner of the structure or site or in any order of taking, which right, limitation
or obligation is appropriate to the preservation or restoration of such structure or site.
Regular Member. A member of the Commission who has full vating power.

Rules of Procedure. A set of rules adopted by the Commission pursuant to RSA 676:1

concerning the method of conducting the Commission's business.

Il RESPONSIBILITIES

1.

Page 2 of 8

Pursuant to RSA § 674:44-b, the Commission shall have advisory and review authority, specifically,

as follows:

a.
b.

Survey and inventory all historic and cultural resources.
Conduct research and publish findings, including reports to establish the legal basis for a
historic district and preparation of historic district ordinances within the municipality prior to

its adoption or amendment as provided in RSA 675:6.

4/25/2007



Town of Exeter Heritage Commission Rules of Procedure

c. Assist the Planning Board, as requested, in the development and review of those sections
of the master plan that address cultural and historic resources.

d. Advise, upon request, local agencies and other local boards (including the Historic District
Commission pursuant to RSA § 674:44-c) in their review of requests on matters affecting
or potentially affecting cultural and historical resources.

e. Coordinate activities with appropriate service organizations and non-profit groups such as
the Exeter Historical Society, the American Independence Museum, the Daughters of the
American Revolution, etc.

f. Publicize its activities.

g. Hire consultants and contractors as needed.

Receive gifts of money and property, both real and personal, in the name of the town and

subject to the approval of the Board of Selectmen, such gifts to be managed and

controlled by the Commission for its proper purposes.
Property: Pursuant to RSA § 674:44-b, the Commission may acquire, in the name of the town and
subject to the approval of the Board of Selectmen, by gift, purchase, grant, bequest, devise, lease,
or otherwise, a fee or lesser interest, development right, covenant, or other contractual right,
including conveyances with conditions, limitations, or reversions, as may be necessary to acquire,
maintain, improve, protect, limit the future use of, or otherwise conserve and properly use the
cultural resources of the town, and shall manage and control the same; provided, however, that the

town or commission shall not have the right to condemn property for these purposes.

M. MEMBERSRIP

1.

Page 3 of 8

Regular Members. Pursuant to § RSA 673:4-a, membership shall consist of seven regular

members. One member shall be an ex officio member of the Board of Selectmen, one member
shall be an ex officio member of the Historic District Commission and one member shall be an ex
officio member of the Planning Board.

Alternate Members. Not more than five alternate members may be appointed. Whenever a regular
member is either absent or disqualifies himself or herself, the chairperson shall designate an
alternate to vote in his or her place; except that only the alternate designated by the Board of
Selectmen for its ex officio member shall serve in place of that member. When designated to vote,
the alternate shall continue as a voting member until the end of the meeting unless the regular
member for whom the alternate is voting subsequently joins the meeting, in which case that
alternate shall continue as a voting member only until the immediate issue under consideration is
decided. To the extent that an issue is considered over the course of two or more meetings, the
alternate so designated shall sit and vote on that issue at subsequent sessions concerning that
same issue. All voting and non-voting members may participate in all discussions.

Appointment. The ex officio members from the Board of Selectmen, the Historic District
Commission and the Planning Board shall be appointed by vote of their respective boards. All other

regular members and alternate members shall be appointed by the Board of Selectmen.

4/25/2007



Town of Exeter Heritage Commission Rules of Procedure

Qualifications. In determining each member's gualifications, the Board of Selectmen shall take
into consideration the appointee's demonstrated interest and ability to understand, appreciate and
promote the purposes of the Heritage Commission. To the extent that professionals in the following
disciplines are available in the community, the Board of Selectmen should make reasonable efforts
to appoint members from those professions: architectural history, archaeology, cultural
anthropology, New England history, or planning. Information on the credentials of the Commission
members shall be kept on file with the Town Clerk and available for public review. Members shall
be residents of the Town of Exeter.

Terms. Except as provided for in RSA § 673:5 | (b), the term of any ex officio member shall
coincide with the term for that other office. The term of all other regular and alternate members
shall be three years. In accordance with RSA § 673:5 Ii, the initial terms of regular members first
appointed to the Commission shall be staggered so that no more than three appointments occur
annually except when required to fill vacancies. The terms of alternate members shall be staggered
in a similar manner so that no more than two appointments occur annually. If a member wishes to
be reappointed at the end of their term he or she must submit a letter to the Board of Selectmen so
stating, prior to the term expiration.

Vacancies. The Board of Selectmen shall provide eligible volunteers to fill a vacancy, including
expired terms. Vacancies shall be filled as provided by RSA § 673:12. Any member wishing to
vacate their term prior to its expiration must submit a letter so stating to the Board of Selectmen.
Removal. Members may be removed for cause in a manner provided by RSA § 673:13. In addition,
the chairperson may request the resignation of any member who fails to attend four consecutive

meetings without just reason.

V. OFFICERS

1.

Page 4 of 8

Positions and terms. A Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Secretary and Treasurer shall be elected
by a vote of the membership of the Commission. The term of every officer and Chairperson elected
shall be for one year. The Chairperson and officers shall be eligible for re-election. An ex officio
member shall not serve as Chairperson.

Chairperson. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Commission, call meetings at
the frequencies specified below, see that orders and resolutions of the Commission are carried out,
and sign all official correspondence of the Commission, serve as the official spokesperson for the
Commission, and prepare an annual report. The Chairperson shall also appoint such committees
as directed by the Commission.

Vice-Chairperson. The Vice-Chairperson shall perform all the duties of the chairperson in her or
his absence.

Secretary. Pursuant to RSA § 91-A, the Secretary shall record the minutes of the meetings of the
Commission and shall provide the original, signed copy of said minutes to the (Code Enforcement
Officer, Town Clerk, Planning Dept.?) for public inspection within 144 hours of a public meeting or,
unless voted otherwise pursuant to RSA § 91-A:3 lI, within 72 hours of a non-public meeting. The

Secretary shall also keep attendance of reqular, alternate and ex-officio members. Once per year,

4/25/2007



Town of Exeter Heritage Commission Rules of Procedure

the Secretary shall review amendments to the RSAs, if any, that may affect these Rules and
propose corresponding changes to these Rules to keep them current with the RSAs.

Treasurer. The Treasurer shall act as representative of the Commission to the Director of Finance
of the Town of Exeter and prepare budget appropriations annually, in August, for the Heritage
Commission General Fund. The disbursement of heritage funds shall be authorized by a majority
of the Commission. Prior to the use of such funds for the purchase of any interest in real property,

the Commission shall hold a public hearing with notice in accordance with RSA § 675:7.

\A MEETINGS

1.

Page 5 of 8

Regular Meetings. The Commission shall meet regularly on the Second Wednesday of each
month, unless there is no business before the Commission. All regular meetings shall be open to
the public, unless otherwise noticed and conducted in strict accordance with RSA § 91-A:3.
Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Commission shall take place at the call of the
Chairperson or as the Commission deems necessary. All special meetings shall be open to the
public, unless otherwise noticed and conducted in strict accordance with RSA § 91-A:3.

Joint Meetings.

a. Pursuant to RSA § 676:2, an applicant seeking approval from another land use board(s)
may petition the Heritage Commission and the respective land use board(s) to hold a joint
meeting or hearing when the subject matter is within the responsibilities of those boards.
Similarly, the Heritage Commission shall have the authority on its own initiative, pursuant
to RSA § 676:2, to request a joint meeting with any other land use board(s). Each land
use board so petitioned shall have the discretion as to whether or not to hold a joint
meeting with any other land use board.

b. A joint meeting shall be a formal public hearing.

e The Chairperson of the Heritage Commission along with the chairperson(s) of the other
land use board(s) shall mutually determine who shall chair the joint meeting.

d. The Rules of Procedure for the joint meeting shall be governed by the land use board that
chairs the meeting.

e. Every board shall be responsible for rendering a decision on the subject matter that is
within its own jurisdiction.

f. The Heritage Commission shall make all reasonable efforts to hold at least one joint
meeting per year with the Historic District Commission for the purpose of coordinating
preservation activities that overlap within the boundaries of the Exeter Historic Districts.

Non-Public Sessions. In accordance with RSA § 81-A:3, the Commission shall not meet in non-
public session, except for the purposes set forth in (a) through (c) below. No session at which
evidence, information or testimony in any form is received shall be closed to the public, except for
the purposes set forth in (a) through (c) below. When possible, the Commission shall advise the
Town Manager of any planned non-public sessions. The Commission may not enter non-public

session, except pursuant to a motion properly made and seconded. Minutes of non-public sessions

4/25/2007



Page 6 of 8

Town of Exeter Heritage Commission Rules of Procedure

shall be kept, recorded and made available for public inspection in accordance with RSA § 91-A:3,
1.

a. Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the reputation of any
person, other than a member of the Heritage Commission itself, unless such person
requests an open meeting.

b. Consideration of the acquisition, sale or lease of real or personal property which, if
discussed in public, would likely benefit a party or parties whose interests are adverse to
those of the general community.

c. Consideration or negotiation of pending claims or litigation which has been threatened in
writing or filed against the Heritage Commission or any member thereof, because of his or
her membership in the Heritage Commission, until the claim or litigation has been fully
adjudicated or otherwise settled.

Site Review. At its option, the Commission may table final consideration of an issue pending a site
review. The purpose of the site review is to validate information that could materially affect the
consideration of the issue at hand. A site review shall be required in all circumstances where the
Commission is considering the acquisition of a full or partial interest in real property pursuant to
Section VI or expenditure of public funds for treatment of historic structures. A site review shall be
considered part of the meeting during which the acquisition or treatment is considered and shall be
open to the public.

Notice. Notice of the time, date, place and agenda of any public meeting (other than a public
hearing pursuant to the consideration of the acquisition or acceptance of property pursuant to
Section VI of these Rules) of the Commission shall be posted in two public places at least 24
hours, excluding Sundays and legal holidays, prior to the meeting.

Order of Business. The business of regular meetings shall include, but not be limited to:

a Attendance.

b. Resolution of conflicts of interest and designation of voting.
(o} Minutes.

d. Public Hearing (if applicable).

e. Committee & financial reports.

f. Old business.

g. New business.

h. Adjournment.
Rules of Order. Robert’s Rules of Order shall be used as a guide to conduct meetings unless
otherwise prescribed by these Rules of Procedure.
Quorum and voting. A majority of the voting members shall constitute the quorum necessary in
order to transact business in any meeting of the Commission. A motion, duly seconded and
following discussion, shall be passed by affirmative vote of the quorum. The Chairperson shall not
make a motion while chairing a meeting of the Commission. After all discussion of the motion has

been completed, the Chairperson will call for a vote. When the vote is evenly divided, the motion

4/25/2007



10.

Town of Exeter Heritage Commission Rules of Procedure

shall be deemed to have been defeated. If the vote is not unanimous, the minutes of the meeting
shall indicate members opposed or abstaining by name. The Chairperson shall vote on each
motion.

Work or Study Sessions. Work or study sessions may be convened as a whole or as a committee
of the whole in the same manner as special meetings, provided that no quorum shall be required

and that no official action shall be taken.

VI. ACQUISITIONS & HOLDINGS

1.

Public Hearing. The Commission shall hold a public hearing prior to the acquisition or acceptance
of a partial or whole interest in any real property. At the hearing, any applicant, abutter, or holder of
conservation or preservation restriction shall be provided an opportunity to testify in person, and
any party with a direct interest in the matter may testify in person or in writing.

Notice. Notice shall be provided to the seller/grantor/donor, holders of conservation or preservation
restrictions, and to abutters by mail of the date upon which the Commission will consider the
matter. Notice shall be sent by regular mail at least 10 days prior to the meeting. Notice to the
general public shall also be given at the same time by posting in two public places and one local
newspaper at [east 10 calendar days before the hearing. The notice shall include a general
description of the proposal that is the subject of consideration and shall identify the
seller/grantor/donor and the location of the proposed property.

Due Diligence. The Commission shall perform or cause to be performed all necessary due
diligence to protect the interests of the town and to make an appropriate determination as to the
public benefit of the proposed acquisition. Due diligence may include some or all of the following:
title search, survey, historic structure report, environmental tests, appraisal, etc.

Consultation with Board of Selectmien. The Commission shall seek the approval of the Board of
Selectmen prior to making a final decision on whether to acquire or accept real property.

Gifts of Personal Property. In the case of gifts of personal property, no public hearing is required,
but must be reviewed with the Town Manager for insurance consideration. A record of the gift will
be made in the minutes of the meeting at which it is announced. Monetary gifts will be immediately
deposited in accordance with the “Town of Exeter Deposit Policy.” Gifts of securities and of other
personal property that does not have historic or cultural value to Exeter’s heritage will be
immediately sold and the proceeds deposited in accordance with the “Town of Exeter Deposit
Policy.” Gifts of historic or cultural value to Exeter’s heritage may be offered to the Exeter Historical

Society for accession consideration.

VIL. ADMINISTRATION

1.
2.

Page 7 of 8

Forms. All forms and revisions thereof shall be adopted by vote of the Commission.

Due Diligence. The Commission may table final consideration of an issue for the purposes of
seeking advice, recommendations, or reports from professional, educational, cultural, civic or other
groups or persons as may be deemed necessary for the determination of a reasonable decision.
Records. Records of the Commission shall be kept in the office of the Town Clerk and be available

to the public in accordance with RSA § 91-A.

4/25/2007



Town of Exeter Heritage Commission Rules of Procedure

VIII. CODE OF CONDUCT

1.

Page 8 of 8

Commission members and staff shall not use their position for a purpose that is, or gives the
appearance of being, motivated by a desire for personal benefit or private gain for themselves or
others, particularly those with whom they have family, business, organizational, or other ties.
Commission members and staff who have a financial interest in a property, shall not participate in
any discussion, hearing, or other Commission consideration of that property, whether as part of
focal review procedures pursuant to RSA § 674 and RSA § 676, or as part of actions such as
National Register nomination review procedures.

Commission members and staff shall not participate in the preparation of, administration,
monitoring, approval, or payment of any grants or contracts made to or by the Commission if a real
or apparent conflict of interest would be involved.

In conformance with RSA § 673:14, no member of the Commission shall sit upon the hearing of
any question which the Commission is to decide if that member has a direct, personal, or pecuniary
interest in the outcome which differs from the interest of other citizens or would be disqualified for
any cause to act as a juror upon the trial of the same matter in any action at law.

When uncertainty arises as to the application of these provisions to a Commission memberin
particular circumstances, the Commission shall, upon the request of that member or another
member of the Commission, vote on the question of whether that member should be disqualified.
Any such request and vote shall be made prior to or at the commencement of any required public
hearing. Such a vote shall be advisory and non-binding, and may not be requested by persons
other than Commission members, except as provided by local ordinance or by these Rules of
Procedure.

if a member of the Commission is disqualified or unable to act in any particular case before the
Commission, the chairperson shall designate an alternate to act in place of the disqualified member
as specified in RSA § 673:11.

Any member of the Commission who may have an apparent, potential, or actual conflict of interest
with respect to any deliberations or matters before the Commission shall absent himself or herself
from the Commission's meeting while such matters are being considered or acted upon.
Commission members and staff who are in office or employed at the time these code of conduct
provisions are adopted shall be exempted for a period not to exceed one year from the date of

adoption, pursuant to RSA § 31:39-a.

4/25/2007



